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Location

CHAMP STREET AND MURRAY ROAD AND URQUHART STREET AND PENTRIDGE BOULEVARD AND
WARDENS WALK AND SENTRY LANE AND INDUSTRY LANE AND STOCKADE AVENUE AND VIA ROMA
COBURG, MORELAND CITY

Municipality

MERRI-BEK CITY

Level of significance

Registered

Victorian Heritage Register (VHR) Number



H1551

Heritage Overlay Numbers

HO47

VHR Registration

August 20, 1982

Amendment to Registration

December 8, 2011

Heritage Listing

Victorian Heritage Register

Statement of Significance

Last updated on - December 2, 1999

What is significant?

The former HM Pentridge Prison was established in December 1850. The structures remaining from the prison
consist of A Division, B Division, B Division Annexe (former kitchen), D Division including the exercise yards, the
former hospital (Former E Division), F Division, G Division (Jika Reformatory for Girls), H Division, the main gate,
Administration Building, the former Chief Warders and Overseer of Works Residences, the Industries Buildings,
the laundry, the south gate to the Women's Prison, and remaining bluestone walls, gates and lookout towers.

The first stage of the prison was the 1850 to 1857 Pentridge Stockade Complex, a relatively ad-hoc group of
structures built by prison labour using predominantly local materials. None of these structures survive, although
the boundary of the prison was established at this stage. The second phase undertaken in the late 1850s and
early 1860s was the construction of Inspector General William Champ's model prison complex, based on the
British Pentonville model and incorporating a relatively sophisticated system of prisoner classification and penal
reform. These were all constructed of locally sourced bluestone. The prison was gradually expanded and
developed in stages, reflecting both developments in design as well as broader Government policies relating to
the operation of the prison system. Following the Stawell Royal Commission of 1870, an extensive work program
for prisoners was introduced at Pentridge and a complex known as the 'Industries' was constructed. These
included a timber yard, a woollen mill, carpenters and blacksmiths workshops completed in 1879, and tailors and
bootmakers workshops completed in 1886.

A women's prison was constructed on the site between 1860 and 1865, now known as A Division. This was
superseded when a new female prison was constructed on the site between 1887 and 1894, in order to provide
completely separate accommodation for women. This section is now known as D Division. Pentridge remained
the main female prison in Victoria until it was replaced by the new women's prison, HM Prison Fairlea in 1956.

From the 1870s Pentridge was also the location of reformatories for girls and boys, established following the
findings of the Stawell Royal Commission of 1870. The Jika Reformatory for Boys was accommodated in an
existing building (F Division), between 1875 and 1879, while a purpose built reformatory was constructed for
Protestant Girls (G Division), operating between 1875 and 1893.

In 1900 labour yards for A Division were completed. During the 1950s these yards were later converted to a high
security block which became known as H Division. In 1924 Pentridge replaced the Melbourne Gaol as the main
remand and reception prison for the metropolitan area. The bodies of approximately thirty-six prisoners executed
at the Melbourne Gaol were exhumed and relocated to Pentridge, where they were reburied. Pentridge also



became the venue for ten prisoner hangings, until the last Victorian prisoner to suffer the death penalty, Ronald
Ryan, was executed in D Division in 1967. In 1960 during a term spent in Pentridge, the Aboriginal artist Ronald
Bull painted a mural depicting a traditional tribal scene. The mural survives and is located at the east end of F
Division. In April 1995 the Office of Corrections ordered that the six main towers at Pentridge be closed, since
most of the high security prisoners from the gaol had been relocated to Barwon as part of the downgrading of
Pentridge to a medium security prison. The prison was finally closed in 1997 and the land and buildings
subsequently sold.

This site is on the traditional land of the Kulin Nation

How is it significant?

The former HM Prison Pentridge is of historical, architectural, archaeological, scientific (technological) and
aesthetic significance to the State of Victoria.

Why is it significant?

The former HM Prison Pentridge is of historical significance as the largest prison complex constructed in Victoria
in the nineteenth century.

The former HM Prison Pentridge is of architectural and historical significance as a nineteenth century complex of
buildings that demonstrates a number of phases in the development of the penal reform system. Most of these
structures still survive, largely intact. The range of cell blocks, workshops and other buildings, the relatively
dispersed layout of the buildings and the large scale of the site as a whole demonstrate the unique character of
Pentridge as the principal establishment for long-term prisoners. The planning of A, B and D Divisions are
representative examples of the overwhelming influence and continuing development of British planning models,
from the 1830s until the end of the nineteenth century. F Division is a rare surviving example of early nineteenth
century prison buildings. The former prison is of architectural significance due to its monumental size and the
austere Classical style of the nineteenth century prison buildings. The complex of buildings and walls are
important for their expression of the requirements of containment and order.

The former HM Prison Pentridge is of historical significance in the history of child welfare in Victoria. It was the
location of reformatories for both girls and boys, established following the findings of the Stawell Royal
Commission of 1870. The prison complex includes the purpose-built Jika Reformatory for Protestant Girls (G
Division), which operated between 1875 and 1893.

The former HM Prison Pentridge is of archaeological significance for its archaeological features, deposits and
relics that relate to the construction and use of the site. The burial area and industry refuse site adjacent to the
east wall of the F Division includes the burial sites of all executed prisoners relocated from the Old Melbourne
Gaol between 1929 and 1937, and the burials of nine prisoners executed at Pentridge between 1928 and 1951.
The area adjacent to the east wall of D Division is significant as the former burial site of Ronald Ryan, and as the
site where executed prisoner burial remains were reinterred in 2011.

The former HM Prison Pentridge is of scientific (technological) significance for its original ventilation systems in A,
B and D Divisions, and the surviving original cisterns and other elements of the water supply system in B
Division. The apparently intact thermo-ventilation system in B Division is of particular importance.

The former HM Prison Pentridge is of aesthetic significance due to its grim and imposing bluestone walls and
towers which are important landmark features.

Permit Exemptions

General Exemptions:

General exemptions apply to all places and objects included in the Victorian Heritage Register (VHR). General
exemptions have been designed to allow everyday activities, maintenance and changes to your property, which
don’t harm its cultural heritage significance, to proceed without the need to obtain approvals under the Heritage
Act 2017.



Places of worship: In some circumstances, you can alter a place of worship to accommodate religious practices
without a permit, but you must notify the Executive Director of Heritage Victoria before you start the works or
activities at least 20 business days before the works or activities are to commence.

Subdivision/consolidation: Permit exemptions exist for some subdivisions and consolidations. If the subdivision or
consolidation is in accordance with a planning permit granted under Part 4 of the Planning and Environment Act
1987 and the application for the planning permit was referred to the Executive Director of Heritage Victoria as a
determining referral authority, a permit is not required.

Specific exemptions may also apply to your registered place or object. If applicable, these are listed below.
Specific exemptions are tailored to the conservation and management needs of an individual registered place or
object and set out works and activities that are exempt from the requirements of a permit. Specific exemptions
prevail if they conflict with general exemptions.

Find out more about heritage permit exemptions here.

Specific Exemptions:

General Conditions: 1. All exempted alterations are to be planned and carried out in a manner which prevents
damage to the fabric of the registered place or object. General Conditions: 2. Should it become apparent during
further inspection or the carrying out of works that original or previously hidden or inaccessible details of the place
or object are revealed which relate to the significance of the place or object, then the exemption covering such
works shall cease and Heritage Victoria shall be notified as soon as possible. Note: All archaeological places
have the potential to contain significant sub-surface artefacts and other remains. In most cases it will be
necessary to obtain approval from the Executive Director, Heritage Victoria before the undertaking any works that
have a significant sub-surface component. General Conditions: 3. If there is a conservation policy and plan
endorsed by the Executive Director, all works shall be in accordance with it. Note: The existence of a
Conservation Management Plan or a Heritage Action Plan endorsed by the Executive Director, Heritage Victoria
provides guidance for the management of the heritage values associated with the site. It may not be necessary to
obtain a heritage permit for certain works specified in the management plan. General Conditions: 4. Nothing in
this determination prevents the Executive Director from amending or rescinding all or any of the permit
exemptions. General Conditions: 5. Nothing in this determination exempts owners or their agents from the
responsibility to seek relevant planning or building permits from the responsible authorities where applicable.

Exterior:

Exterior to all specified buildings and walls:
* Minor repairs and maintenance which replace like with like.
* Removal of any extraneous items such as air conditioners, pipe work, ducting, wiring, antennae, aerials etc, and
making good.Interior:

Interior:

Interior of B4 (B Division), B7 (A Division), B8 (H Division,) B11 (D Division), B12 (F Division -central building
only)
* Painting of previously painted walls and ceilings provided that preparation or painting does not remove evidence
of the original paint or other decorative scheme.
* Removal of paint from originally unpainted or oiled joinery, doors, architraves, skirtings and decorative
strapping.
* Installation, removal or replacement of carpets and/or flexible floor coverings.
* Installation, removal or replacement of curtain track, rods, blinds and other window dressings.
* Installation, removal or replacement of hooks, nails and other devices for the hanging of mirrors, paintings and
other wall mounted artworks.
* Refurbishment of bathrooms, toilets including removal, installation or replacement of sanitary fixtures and
associated piping, mirrors, wall and floor coverings.
* Installation, removal or replacement of kitchen benches and fixtures including sinks, stoves, ovens,
refrigerators, dishwashers etc and associated plumbing and wiring.

https://application-hub.app.planning.vic.gov.au/hv/createForm/EDNotificationHV
https://www.heritage.vic.gov.au/permits-and-approvals/heritage-permit-exemptions


* Installation, removal or replacement of ducted, hydronic or concealed radiant type heating provided that the
installation does not damage existing skirtings and architraves and provided that the location of the heating unit is
concealed from view.
* Installation, removal or replacement of electrical wiring provided that all new wiring is fully concealed and any
original light switches, pull cords, push buttons or power outlets are retained in-situ. Note: if wiring original to the
place was carried in timber conduits then the conduits should remain in-situ.
* Installation, removal or replacement of bulk insulation in the roof space.
* Installation, removal or replacement of smoke detectors.

* All interior alterations that do not adversely affect the exterior fabric (including the roof or structure) of the
following buildings: B1 (Main Gate and Administration Building), B2 (Former Chief Warders and Overseer of
Works Residences), B3 (Former Hospital - Former E Division), B5 (B Division Annexe), B6 (Industry Buildings),
B10 (G Division), B12 (F division - either side of central building), B13 (Laundry), B14 (South Gate to Former
Women's Prison).

Construction dates 1858, 

Architect/Designer Joachimi, Gustav, 

Heritage Act Categories Registered place,  Registered archaeological place, 

Hermes Number 306

Property Number

History

Contextual History:

History of Place:
Pentridge Prison was established in 1851 as a result of increased pressure on the Penal system due to the gold
rush and the need for a place to hold those convicted of serious offences. The first stage was the 1850-1857
Pentridge Stockade Complex, a relatively ad-hoc group of structures built by prison labour and using
predominantly local materials. None of these structures survive on the site, however the boundary of the prison
was established at this stage. The second phase undertaken in the late 1850s and early 1860s was the
construction of Inspector General William Champ’s model prison complex, based on British exemplars and
incorporating a relatively sophisticated system of prisoner classification and penal reform. The main structures
constructed at this stage and still surviving are the Entrance Building, Warder’s residences, Prison Hospital,
Panopticon B Division, F Division, a Workshop building (now known as the Laundry) and most of the prison walls.
These were all constructed of bluestone. The prison was gradually expanded and developed in stages, reflecting
both developments in penology as well as broader Government policies relating to the operation of the prison
system. Following the Stawell Royal Commission of 1870 an extensive work program for prisoners was
introduced as part of the system at Pentridge and a complex known as the Industries was constructed. These
included a timber yard, a woollen mill, carpenters’ and blacksmiths’ workshops completed in 1879 and tailors’ and
bootmakers’ workshops completed in 1886. A female prison was constructed on the site between 1860 and 1865
which is now known as A Division. This was superseded when a new female prison was constructed on the site
between 1887 and 1894 in order to provide completely separate accommodation for women. This section is now
known as D Division. Pentridge remained the main female prison until it was replaced by the new women’s
prison, HM Prison Fairlea in 1956. Pentridge was also the location of reformatories for both girls and boys,
established following the findings of the Stawell Royal Commission of 1870. The Jika Reformatory for Boys was
accommodated in an existing building (F Division), between 1875 and 1879, while a purpose built reformatory
was constructed for the Jika Reformatory for Protestant Girls (G Division), which operated between 1875 and
1893. In 1900 labour yards for A Division were completed. During the 1950s these yards were later converted to
a high security block which became known as H Division. In 1924 Pentridge replaced the Melbourne Gaol as the
main remand and reception prison for the metropolitan area. The bodies of a number of prisoners executed at the
Melbourne Gaol were exhumed and relocated to Pentridge, where they were reburied, possibly just east of D
Division. Pentridge also became the venue for all subsequent hangings, until the last Victorian prisoner to suffer



the death penalty, Ronald Ryan was executed in D Division in 1967. In April 1995 the Office of Corrections
ordered that the six main towers at Pentridge be closed, since most of the high security prisoners from the gaol
had been relocated to Barwon as part of the downgrading of Pentridge to a medium security prison. The prison
was finally closed in 1996.
Associated People: Samuel Barrow, John Price, William Champ and successive Inspectors-General.

Plaque Citation

In 1850 a prison stockade was established on this site. Massively expanded from 1859 onwards, it became the
largest prison in Victoria. Closed in 1997, many men, women and children were confined here.

Assessment Against Criteria

Criterion A
The historical importance, association with or relationship to Victoria's history of the place or object.

The former HM Prison Pentridge is of historical significance as the largest prison complex constructed in Victoria
in the nineteenth century, which operated as the central establishment in the wider prison system from the 1860s.

Criterion B
The importance of a place or object in demonstrating rarity or uniqueness.

F Division is a rare surviving example of early nineteenth century prison and hospital design.

Criterion C
The place or object's potential to educate, illustrate or provide further scientific investigation in relation to
Victoria's cultural heritage.

The complex of buildings, which remains on site, demonstrates a number of phases in the development of the
penal system, including the separate system, which dominated penology in Victoria in the nineteenth century.
Pentridge is also significant in the history of child welfare in Victoria. It was the location of reformatories for both
girls and boys established following the findings of the Stawell Royal Commission of 1870. The prison complex
includes a purpose-built reformatory of 1875 (G Division), constructed as the Jika Reformatory for Protestant
Girls, which operated between 1875 and 1893. It represents development and reform of the penal system in
Victoria from 1850. As Victoria's largest and most central prison since 1860 it reflects changes since this time.

Criterion D
The importance of a place or object in exhibiting the principal characteristics or the representative nature of a
place or object as part of a class or type of places or objects.

The former HM Prison Pentridge is of architectural importance as most of the major elements of the nineteenth
century complex survive and are largely intact, and together clearly demonstrate the planning and functioning of
the prison in the nineteenth century and the main functional elements of the separate system. The range of cell
blocks, workshops and other buildings, the relatively dispersed layout of the buildings and the large scale of the
site as a whole contrast with other nineteenth century prisons in Victoria and demonstrate the unique character of
Pentridge as the principal penal establishment for long-term prisoners within the nineteenth century Victorian
prison system. The planning of A, B and D Divisions are representative examples of the overwhelming influence
and continuing development of British planning models and the separate system on prison design in Australia
from the 1830s until the end of the nineteenth century.

Criterion E
The importance of the place or object in exhibiting good design or aesthetic characteristics and/or in exhibiting a
richness, diversity or unusual integration of features.

The former prison is of aesthetic and architectural significance because of the monumental scale and austere
Classical style of the remaining nineteenth century prison buildings. The complex of buildings and walls are
important for their expression of the requirements of containment and order and are typical of other prison



buildings constructed in Victoria in the 1850s and 60s.

Criterion F
The importance of the place or object in demonstrating or being associated with scientific or technical innovations
or achievements.
Criterion G
The importance of the place or object in demonstrating social or cultural associations.

Samuel Barrow, John Price, William Champ and successive Inspectors-General.

Criterion H
Any other matter which the Council considers relevant to the determination of cultural heritage significance

Extent of Registration

NOTICE OF AMENDMENT OF REGISTRATION

As Executive Director for the purpose of the Heritage Act 1995, I give notice under section 46 that the Victorian
Heritage Register is amended by amending the Heritage Register Number 1551 in the categories described as
Heritage Place and Archaeological Place.

HM Prison Pentridge
Champ Street
Coburg
Moreland City Council

EXTENT

1. All of the buildings known as:

B1 Main Gate and Administration Building
B2 Former Chief Warders and Overseer of Works Residences
B3 Former Hospital (former E Division),
B4 B Division
B5 B Division Annexe (former Kitchen)
B6 Industries Buildings
B7 A Division
B8 H Division
B9 Walls, Gates and Lookout Towers
B10 G Division (Jika Reformatory for Girls)
B11 D Division including remnant exercise yard walls (New Female Prison)
B12 F Division
B13 Laundry
B14 South Gate to former Women's Prison

as marked on Diagram H1551 held by the Executive Director.

2. All of the land marked L1 and L2 on Diagram H1551 held by the Executive Director.

Dated 8 December 2011

JIM GARD'NER
Executive Director

[Victoria Government Gazette G 49 8 December 2011 2885-2886]



This place/object may be included in the Victorian Heritage Register pursuant to the Heritage Act 2017. Check
the Victorian Heritage Database, selecting 'Heritage Victoria' as the place source.

For further details about Heritage Overlay places, contact the relevant local council or go to Planning Schemes
Online http://planningschemes.dpcd.vic.gov.au/

http://planningschemes.dpcd.vic.gov.au/

